Exhibit 8



CI) &\@‘L@ﬁ u;f;\,lﬁ’é No. fu

WAR mzfx@mgg_a_@mac §oris
SURGEON GENERAL’S OFFICE,

Wasninerox, Decessrr 5, 1870.

DESCRIPTIONS OF MILITARY POSTS.

WASHINGTON.
GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE.
1870.




468 DESCRIPTIONS OF MILITARY POSTS.

doors. Meating is effected by means of a fireplace. The average oecupaney of the guard-house
is six prisoners.

The hospital is an old, dilapidated stockade building, not worth repairs, with dirt roof and
floor. A new building is wueh needed, and will be eommeneed as soou as possible, the work to bo
done by the troops. The present hospital is warmed by means of fireplaces, and lighted by win-
dows. The ventilation is defieient. The ward, 28 by 25 by 10 feet, generally eontnins six beds,
giving to eaeh a eubieal air spaee of 1,166 feet. There are no bath or wash rooms; a bathing-tub
is nsed in the ward.

The supply of water is afforded Ly water-earts filled at the river, and that used for drinking
purposes is cooled in “oyers,” or earthen jars eovered with wmatting. The water of the Colorado,
although muddy, does not produee diarrhea or other nupleasaut effeets. Natural drainage is good,
All refuse, dirt, and litter are removed from the vieinity and earried off by the river.

Subsistenee and other stores are reeeived by light-draught steamboats on the river. Vegeta-
bles are searee, and are with diffieulty obtained from California. Several eases of ineipient seurvy
have oecurred, but yield at onee to vegetable diet. A large supply of c¢anned fruit and vegetables
for the use of the enlisted men is a great neeessity here, as no post garden ean be eultivated.
Sueh artieles can be obtained from the eommissary department at low priees. Potatoes and onions
are brought 250 miles from California. Milk costs $1 50 per gallon; butter, 81 per pound; eggs,
81 per dozen; potatoes, 12 to 15 eents per pound; and omnions, 20 to 25 eents per pound.

The only means of eommunieation is by wagon and horsebaek, with oeeasionally a steamer
from Fort Yuma, California. DMails are reeeived eaeh week from the west, via La Paz, and from
the cast via Salt Lake City; the mail is earried on horseback, requiritig sixteen days to department
headquarters.

The Indian tribes on the river are peaccable; they eultivate eorn, wheat, beans, and squashes,
planting after the annual overflow. During the winter months, when their stores of provisions are
low, they are furnished with small supplies of flour from the post. No depredations have been eom-
mitted in the valley, and many of the hostile Hualhapais have surrendered and come in.

Statement showing mean strength, number of sick, and principal diseases at Camp Mojave, Arizona
Territory, for the years 1868 and 18G9.

b o ] !
: 2 4 a § 2
| - T B i . o
G B RESiEe e g ey s
Years. 8 2 o = § o -3 = = e a8 =
2 o 2 ] = 2 (= g < =, ] 'ﬁ % =
— b e -
E | 5% .% Bl B g 5 g [ T
] -} =]
2 | B SR & 2 & = Bl 5
18685 e st vs s ian B4.08 263 26 | 35 2 61 11 16 3| % 3
1860 aam 78.83 122 | 21 o0 eeth Rl 21 1 3 1 i HiEg L

* Inclnde Iaryngitis, bronohitis, pnenmonia, and plearisy.

CAMP VERDE, ARIZONA TERRITORY.

INFORMATION FURNISHED BY ASSISTANT SURGEON CHARLES SMART AND ACTING ASSISTANT SURGEON
W. H. SMITH, UNITED STATES ARMY.

Camp Verde, formerly known as Camp Liueoln, is situated on the east bank of the Rio Verde,
about 50 miles east of Preseott, the nearest town, and by way of which it reeeives all its supplies
and mails, and 90 wiles north of Camp MeDowell by trail along the Rio Verde. The Verde
Valley, during the greater portion of its eourse from north to south, is extremely narrow, being
little other than a eafion with rugged and barren hills on either side, but in this loeality it is about
seven miles wide, with a rieh alluvial bottom, which, to some extent, has been farmed by settlers.
When irrigated it is very fertile and yields fine erops of eorn, whieh is the staple produet. The
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Blaek Mountains bound it on the west aud the Mogollon range on the east. On the tougue of land
formed by the junetion of Beaver Creek with the Verde, three-quarters of a mile below the post,
there i¥ a considerable traet of low bottony, on whieh a rank vegetation springs up after the spring
and autumn rains. This appears to be the ehief source of the malarial diseases whieh affect the
garrison, more espceially at the latter season. The water of both these strcams is of exeellent
quality, free from any marked amount of organic or inorganie imnpurities, and turbid only during
floods. Cool water, even in the hot summer season, ean be obtained fromn a small spring on Beaver
Creek. 'Thereare rich grazing and fine timber in the vieinity of the eamnp, and gaine in abundanee.

The spring rains oceur during Mavel, and, with the snow ou the mountains, usually oeeusion
floods, which inundate wnany of the bottom lands; similar floods are an aecompaniment of the
July rains; but the rapid current of the river, the sandy soil of the inundated lands, and the high
winds which are prevaleut doriug these stormy wmonths, speedily drain and dry oft all surface
water.

The mean annual temperature for the year ending June 30, 1869, was 60.75¢ F.; the extremes
being on September 2, 1070 F., and Deeember 15, 240 F.

The post was originally established by two eompanies of Arizona volunteers, mostly Mexieans
who were in service during the late war. It was au outpost front Fort Whipple, and intended to
proteet the Prescott country and adwmit of its settlement, The shelters built by these troops were
of the most primitive eharacter; and even on the advent of the regular troops in 1866 they were
but little improved, eonsisting of exeavations on a hill-side, completed with logs and shelter tents.
The hospital wasa small log house, 15 by 13 fect, containing three beds. Its site wasan elevated piece
of ground one-quarter mile from the Verde, with excelleut surface drainage and a porous gravelly
soil. Better and more permanent quarters were commenced on the samne site in 1868, but two sets
of compauy barracks are the only buildings as yet completed. One set is unoceupied by troops,
bat is nsed in part as a quartevnaster and subsistenec store-room. Eaeh building is 100 by 26 by
10 feet, with adobe walls, shingled roof, and eartheu floor, and is partitioned off into two dormnitories,
40 feet long, by au office in the eenter, 20 by 20 feet, which communieates with the former. Eaeh
dormitory has an open fireplace, four windows, a door opening on the parade, and auother eo
munieating with the office. But as these were fouud to be insufficient for satisfactory ventilatiou;. .
a ventilator was opened in the wall of eaeh room near the roof. The only fixtures or furniture is
a donble line of bunks, two tiers high, eaeh 4 feet wide, and aceommodating four men. But little
over 300 eubie feet of air spaee is permitfed to each man, of average oceupation. All the other
buildings of the post are irregular, being for the mnost part the remains of the old eamp. Thers
is no wmess-room, the men eating their rations iu quarters.

The officers’ quarters are miserable hovels, that of the commandiug officer being formed of
rough boards, with paping seams. Its size is 12 by 13 feet.

The gnard-house is a swall stoekade, with eanvas roof, lighted by the door aud roof, and
sufficieutly ventilated by the erevices between the posts forming the walls.

After the log hospital of three beds mentioned above was disused, the siel were plaeed in a
ward of hospital tents, with an adobe fireplaee and chimney built at one eud. Average oceupation
of this, seven men. Sinee the recent completion of the second set of eowpany quarters the sick
have been moved into one of its dormitories for treatment until sneh time as a hospital is built.

The post gardeu, sitnated six miles below the post where Clear Creek joins the river, is
nominally enltivated by from three to five men detailed for that duty; but the supply is not such
a3 the exteut and fertility of the soil at eommand would yield with eareful cultivatiou. It has
produced, however, 2 small eart-load of onions, beets, eorn, cabbage, melons, and eueumbers twiee
a week for four or five weeks during the season, and provided the garrison with sauerkraut duriug
the winter; ehiekeus, eggs, and butter are hardly to be obtained, but deer are sometimes shot in
the mountain gorges. In this vieinity there are three or four small ranehes farmed by German and
Ameriean settlers.

The diseases whieh prevail are ehiefly malarial, eousisting of intermitteuts, hepatie affeetions,
and diarrheea. During the dryer seasons of the year most of this class of eases eome frow the
men on duty at the post gardens aud other low localities.

In additiou to the few settlements on Clear Creek, there are some ranches on the Agua Fria,
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abont midway between the post and Camp Whipple. In the Agua Fria district there are also
many auriferous ledges, mostly of frce gold.

The hostile Indians, Tonto Apaches, ocenpy the monntains south of the post thromgh which
the Verde cations its way toward Camp MeDowell, and to the eastward the diffienlt country in the
neighborhood of the Mogollon ridge.

Statement showing mean strength, number of sick, and principal discases at Camp Verde, Arizona
Territory, for the year 1869.
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* Include taryngitis, bronchitis, pnenmonia, and plenrisy.

CAMP COLORADO, ARIZONA TERRITORY.

INFORMATION FURNISHED BY ASSISTANT SURGEON CHARLES SMART, AND ACTING ASSISTANT SUR-
GEON WASHINGTON WEST, UNITED STATES ARMY.

This camp is ou the east bauk of the Colorado River, on the Mojave Indian reservation, 322
miles from the mouth of the river, and 440 feet above the sca-level. La Paz is tlie nearcst posst
officc, and is 40 1iles distant along the river. Letters require ten or fiftecn days to reach San
Franecisco; twenty-five or thirty to Washington.

The camp was cstablishied in the latter part of 1868, in auticipation of trouble from thie river
Indians. 1tis placed immediately on the river bank, above overflow, on the low level bottomn,
which is abont 250 yards wide at this point. Beyond this bottom to the eastward, a mesa or table-
land rises with a gradual ascent to a height of 40 or 50 feet, and extends to tle distant mountain
ranges. It is alnost destitute of vegetation. Thc country on the opposite bank is similar in char-
aeter. Some of the fertile bottom lands along the river arc cultivated by the Indians. Cotton-
wood, mesquite, ironwood, willow, and arrow-wood grow along its banks. The tlimate is similar to
that of Fort Yuma, California.

The camp is a temporary onc, eonsisting of brush Iats, which afford sowe protection from the
rays of the sun, but nione from the rains and violent sand-storms prevailing during the winter and
early spring months. Lheir only furnishings arc rudely-built bunks, raised a foot or more from tlie
gronnd. The rations are cooked and caten in the open air. Tlecre are nomarried soldiers in camp.
The officers live in wall teuts pitched underncath a brush shadc at one cud of the line of huts for
the men. The bakery, of stone and adobe, is the ouly building of comparatively permanent mate-
rials. The hospital, ward, dispensary, and store-room is a hospital tent.

No post garden has been cultivated, but vegetables in their season can be obtained from the
Indian scttlements. Canned stores are also ou hand in the subsistence department for purchase.

There have been no deaths at the post. Venercal diseases, contraeted among the Mojave In-
diaus on the reservation, constitute the majority of the eases on the sick report.

The Indians in the vieinity are large, muscnlar, and well formed, but without any tendency to
civilization, their only objcet of existcnee being to satisfy the cravings of appetite and the animal
passions,





